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Balance Sheet Notes 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
as at 30 June 2012 ` `

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s funds
Share capital .............................................................................................. 3 149,268,660 158,806,920
Reserves and surplus ............................................................................. 4 910,105,381 1,138,794,696

1,059,374,041 1,297,601,616
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings .......................................................................... 5 681,208 4,297,281
Other long-term liabilities ................................................................... 6 8,990,379 6,070,214
Long-term provisions ............................................................................. 7 72,038,182 40,634,425

81,709,769 51,001,920
Current liabilities
Trade Payables .......................................................................................... 8 82,507,837 36,633,033
Other current liabilities ......................................................................... 9 161,378,164 157,000,639
Short-term provisions ............................................................................ 10 268,790,361 57,296,252

512,676,362 250,929,924

TOTAL .................................................................................... 1,653,760,172 1,599,533,460

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets ......................................................................................... 11 141,348,337 78,431,063
Intangible assets ...................................................................................... 12 118,015,176 70,540,460
Capital work-in-progress ...................................................................... 27,789,450 10,508,386
Intangible assets under development ........................................... 442,719 27,250,791
Non-current investments ..................................................................... 13 403,541,645 411,518,649
Deferred tax assets (net) ...................................................................... 14 63,130,964 53,974,846
Long term loans and advances ......................................................... 15 66,140,559 87,402,430
Other non-current assets ..................................................................... 16 110,660 147,123

............................................................................................................... 820,519,509 739,773,748
Current assets
Trade receivables ..................................................................................... 17 233,819,653 255,325,550
Cash and cash equivalents .................................................................. 18 201,604,718 262,288,912
Short term loans and advances ........................................................ 19 135,413,461 183,990,421
Other current assets ............................................................................... 20 262,402,831 158,154,828

833,240,663 859,759,712

Total ...................................................................................... 1,653,760,172 1,599,533,460

Significant accounting policies ......................................................... 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012
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Statement of Profit and Loss Notes 15 Month
for the year ended 30 June 2012 Year ended  period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Revenue from operations

Sale of services ......................................................................................... 1,812,871,823 1,702,740,333

Other income ............................................................................................ 21 81,409,467 46,983,878

Total revenue ....................................................................... 1,894,281,290 1,749,724,211

Expenses

Employee benefits expense ................................................................ 22 781,511,544 857,925,535

Finance costs ............................................................................................. 23 7,284,308 9,255,340

Depreciation and amortization expense ...................................... 24 71,238,261 158,924,733

Other expenses ........................................................................................ 25 620,053,063 553,688,787

Less: Product development cost capitalised ............................... 26 (44,313,632) (34,116,705)

Total expenses ..................................................................... 1,435,773,544 1,545,677,690

Profit before exceptional items and tax ........................... 458,507,746 204,046,521

Exceptional items income/(expense) .............................................. 27 7,770,692 (34,145,202)

Prior period income/(expense) .......................................................... 28 - (34,901,921)

Profit before tax .................................................................. 466,278,438 134,999,398
Tax expense
Current tax .................................................................................................. 161,287,743 50,400,000
Deferred tax

Current period ................................................................................. (9,156,118) (33,453,495)
Prior period ....................................................................................... - (15,207,162)

Profit for the period ............................................................ 314,146,813 133,260,055

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each) ..... 29

Basic ............................................................................................................... 20.13 8.71

Diluted .......................................................................................................... 20.13 8.71

Significant accounting policies ......................................................... 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of this statement of profit and loss
As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012
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Cash flow statement 15 Month
for the year ended 30 June 2012 Year ended period ended

 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Cash Flows from operating activities

Net Profit before tax and exceptional item ........................................................................................ 458,507,746 169,144,600

Adjustments for:

Depreciation/amortization ............................................................................................................... 71,238,261 158,924,733

(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed asset .................................................................................................. (816,174) (1,531,495)

Provision for doubtful debts ............................................................................................................ 41,794,509 31,437,878

Bad debts written off .......................................................................................................................... 7,012,706 3,822,280

Credit balances written back ........................................................................................................... (18,822,987) (11,525,366)

Unrealised exchange gain ................................................................................................................ (13,790,257) (1,900,265)

Interest income ...................................................................................................................................... (24,665,214) (11,222,004)

Finance cost ............................................................................................................................................ 7,284,308 9,255,340

Mark to market loss on derivative contract .............................................................................. 29,349,208 -

Amortisation of premium on forward exchange contract ................................................. (6,452,371) -

Provision for expenses recoverable .............................................................................................. 1,797,522 -

Dividend income ................................................................................................................................... (1,175,600) (6,517,625)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes ................................................................... 551,261,657 339,888,076

Increase in current liabilities and provisions ...................................................................................... 93,759,439 35,747,833

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables ............................................................................................. (26,036,135) 24,096,744

Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances ........................................................................................ 57,820,776 (81,812,280)

Decrease/(increase) in unbilled revenue ............................................................................................. (97,854,574) (88,318,823)

Cash generated from operations ............................................................................................................ 578,951,163 229,601,550

Taxes paid, net ................................................................................................................................................. (103,395,230) (47,077,006)

Net cash provided by operating activities (A) ............................................................. 475,555,933 182,524,544

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets .............................................................................................................................. (150,340,562) (121,698,935)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets .......................................................................................................... 820,190 2,752,987

Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiary ...................................................................... 15,747,696 70

Interest received ............................................................................................................................................. 25,761,420 9,277,539

Dividend received from subsidiaries ..................................................................................................... 172,800 6,266,750

Dividend received on other investment .............................................................................................. 2,000 -

Investment in a subsidiary ......................................................................................................................... - (81,312,000)

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) .................................................................... (107,836,456) (184,713,589)
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As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital ..................................................................................................... - 80,341,767

Repayment on Buy back of shares ......................................................................................................... (129,737,172) -

Repayment of other secured loan .......................................................................................................... - (18,135,403)

Repayment of Long Term Borrowing .................................................................................................... (3,616,073) -

Bank overdraft ................................................................................................................................................. - (10,346,598)

Dividend paid ................................................................................................................................................... (284,293,439) (34,651,375)

Interest paid ...................................................................................................................................................... (7,284,308) (9,255,340)

Net cash provided/(used) by financing activities (C) .................................................. (424,930,992) 7,953,051

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) ............................................... (57,211,515) 5,764,006

Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency (3,472,679) 2,388,716

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ............................................................ 262,288,912 254,136,190

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year .......................................................................... 201,604,718 262,288,912

Note:

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

in current accounts ........................................................................................................................................ 46,164,124 81,470,187

in deposit accounts ....................................................................................................................................... 145,000,000 170,400,000

margin money ................................................................................................................................................. 7,201,237 8,958,874

Unpaid dividend ............................................................................................................................................. 3,239,357 1,459,852

Total cash and cash equivalents .................................................................................... 201,604,718 262,288,912

Cash flow statement (continued) 15 Month
for the year ended 30 June 2012 Year ended period ended

 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Background

Accelya Kale Solutions Limited (formerly known as Kale consultants Limited) (“Accelya”) is a software solutions provider to
the global Airline and Travel industry.

Accelya delivers world class software products, managed process, technology and hosting services. Accelya’s Industry
Solutions are driven by active partnerships with industry bodies and customers, and significant domain knowledge. Its
customised approach in deploying these solutions supports clients with best fit solutions to match their requirements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis
of accounting and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,1956 and the accounting principles
generally accepted in India and comply with the accounting standards prescribed in the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by the Central Government, in consultation with the National Advisory Committee on
Accounting Standards, to the extent applicable. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

This is the first year of application of the revised schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 for the preparation of the
financials statement of the company. The revised Schedule VI introduces some significant changes as well as new
disclosure. These include classification of all assets and liabilities into current and non-current. The previous figure
have also undergone a major reclassification to comply with the requirement of the revised Schedule VI.

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent liabilities as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates made in the preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future period.

c) Current- non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non current.

Assets

An assets is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date;

Current assets include the current portion of non current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instrument do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non current financials liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Financial Statements
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Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is derived primarily from transaction processing and sale of software license, related implementation and
maintenance service.

Transaction processing service i.e. airline ticket and coupon processing charges is recognized based on the rate fixed
in the contract entered with client based on the work completed.

Arrangement with customer for software development and related implementation services are fixed-price contract.
Revenue from maintenance service is on a time and material basis.

Revenue from the sale of user licenses for software applications is recognized on transfer of the title in the user
license, except in case of multiple element contracts, which require significant implementation services, where revenue
for the entire arrangement is recognized over the implementation period based upon the percentage-of-completion.

Revenue from fixed-price where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is
recognized based on the percentage of completion. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate
collectability revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Cost and estimated earnings in
excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue while billing in excess of cost and estimated earnings is classified
as unearned revenue. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in
which such losses become probable based on the current estimates.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue from the
end of the last billing to the Balance Sheet date is recognized as unbilled revenues.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is recognized as
the related services are performed.

Interest income is recognized using the time proportion method based on the underlying interest rate.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

e) Fixed assets and depreciation (including intangible assets)

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any.
Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and incidental expenditure relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed
assets incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided pro rata to the period of use on the straight-line method (‘SLM’). The depreciation rates
prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Act are considered as the minimum rates.

Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully charged to the profit and loss account in the year of acquisition.

Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date.
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided pro rata to the period of use based on management’s best estimate of useful
lives of the assets (which are shorter than those prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956) as summarised below:

Leased assets To be amortized over the lesser of the period of lease and the
useful life of the asset

Building 30 years

Plant and machinery 6 years

Computer equipments 4 years

Furniture, Fixture, Equipments and Other Assets 6 years

Software Acquired/developed 3 to 5 years

Vehicles 10 years

Notes to the financial statements
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f) Research and Development cost

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical
and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable and Company has
intention and the ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

g) Asset impairment

In accordance with AS-28 ’Impairment of Assets’, where there is an indication of impairment of the Company’s asset,
the carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any impairment. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

h) Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of acquisition
are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution, is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary
in the value of long term investments and is determined separately for each individual investment. The fair value of a
long term investment is ascertained with reference to its market value, the investee’s assets and results and the
expected cash flows from the investment.

i) Leases

Operating lease

Lease rentals under an operating lease, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Finance Lease

Assets acquired under finance lease have been recorded as an asset and liability at the inception of the lease and
have been recorded at an amount equal to lower of fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the future
minimum lease payments.

j) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognized in the profit
and loss account of the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end, are translated at the year-
end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the profit and loss account.
Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Translation of foreign operations

For translating the financials of foreign branches, these are classified into ‘integral’ and ‘non integral’ foreign operation.

Integral foreign operation are those which carry on their business as if they were an extension of the Company’s
operation. Other foreign operation are classified as non-integral.

The financials statement of an integral foreign operation are translated into Indian rupees as if the transaction of the
foreign operation were those of the company itself.

In the case of a non integral foreign operation, the assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, are
translated at the closing exchange rate and income and expenses item are translated at the date of transaction. The
resulting exchange difference are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve. On the disposal of non-integral
foreign operation, the cumulative amount of foreign currency translation reserve which to that operation is recognised
as income or expense.

Notes to the financial statements
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Derivative instrument

The premium or discount on a forward exchange contract taken to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset/
liability is recognized over the period of contract. The forward exchange contract taken to hedge existing asset or
liability are translated at the closing exchange rate and resultant exchange difference are recognized in the same
manner as those on the underline foreign currency asset or liability.

Apart from forward exchange contract taken to hedge existing assets or liabilities, the company also uses derivative to
hedge its foreign currency risk exposure relating to firm commitment and highly probable transaction. In accordance
with the relevant announcement of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India, the company provide for losses in
respect of such outstanding derivative contract at the balance sheet date by marking them to market. Net gain, if any,
is not recognised. The contract are aggregated category wise, to determine the net gain/loss.

k) Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Company’s contributions during the year to Provident Fund are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Defined Benefit Plan

Company’s liability towards gratuity and leave encashment is determined by independent actuaries, using the projected
unit credit method. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The present value of the
obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the
Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss account.

Provision for leave encashment cost has been made based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary at
balance sheet date.

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence. The employees can carry-forward a portion of
the unutilized accrued compensated absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at termination
of employment for the unutilized accrued compensated absence. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The Company
measures the expected cost of compensated absence as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.

l) Income taxes

Income-tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current taxes

Provision for current income-tax is recognised in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 and is
made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

The profits pertaining to the Unit situated at Software Technology Park, Pune of the Company are exempt from taxes
under the Income tax Act, 1961, being profit from industrial undertakings situated in Software Technology Park. Under
Section 10A / 10B of the Income tax Act, 1961, the Company can avail of an exemption of profits from income tax for
a period ended 31 March 2011 in relation to its undertakings set up in the Software Technology Park.

The Income tax Act, 1961 allows credit in respect of MAT paid under section 115JB to be carried forward up to seven
succeeding assessment years. The amount of MAT credit can be set-off only in the year in which the Company is liable
to pay tax as per the normal provisions of the Income tax Act 1961, and such tax is in excess of MAT for that year. The

Notes to the financial statements
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amount of set-off would be to the extent of excess of normal income-tax over the amount of MAT calculated as if
Section 115JB had been applied for that assessment year for which the set-off is being allowed.

In accordance with the guidance note on “Accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under
the Income tax Act, 1961 “issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid
in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax
within the eligible period and the asset can be measured reliably.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences
that result from differences between the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets on timing differences are
recognized only if there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. However, deferred tax assets on the timing differences when unabsorbed
depreciation and losses carried forward exist, are recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reassessed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying amounts at each balance sheet date.

m) Earnings per share (‘EPS’)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for
the year, by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of
shares considered for deriving basic earning per share, and also the weighted average number of equity shares which
may be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential shares, unless the results would be anti – dilutive.

n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company recognizes that it has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reasonably estimated.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements. However contingent assets are assessed continuously
and if it is virtually certain that economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognized in the period
in which the changes occur.

o) Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is
measured at lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract.

p) Employee stock options

The company determines the compensation cost based on the intrinsic value method. The compensation cost is
amortized on a straight line basis over the vesting period.

Notes to the financial statements

l) Provisions for taxation (continued)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
 ` `

3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

20,000,000 (previous year 20,000,000) equity shares of ` 10 each ............................. 200,000,000 200,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

14,926,261 (2011: 15,880,087) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up .................. 149,262,610 158,800,870

Forfeited shares .................................................................................................................................. 6,050 6,050

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up ................................................................. 149,268,660 158,806,920

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Nos ` Nos `

At the beginning of the period ............................ 15,880,087 158,800,870 13,814,019 138,140,190

On exercise of employee stock option ............. - - 1,340,543 13,405,430

Conversion of warrants ............................................ - - 725,525 7,255,250

Equity shares bought back by the Company ... (953,826) (9,538,260) - -

Outstanding at the end of the period ........ 14,926,261 149,262,610 15,880,087 158,800,870

b. Terms/ right, preference and restriction attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends
and share in the company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to
time. The voting right of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show on hands) is in proportion to its share of the
paid-up equity capital of the company. Voting right cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other
sums presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the
company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity held.

c. Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as follows

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Accelya Holding World S.L.

11,143,295 (2011 : 6,153,587) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid ................ 111,432,950 61,535,870

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Nos % of total Nos % of total
 shares in the class shares in the class

Equity shares of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each fully paid

Accelya Holding World S.L. (“Accelya”) .......... 11,143,295 74.66 6,153,587 38.75

Vipul Prashad Jain .................................................. NIL NIL 1,223,246 7.70

Narendra Harihar Kale .......................................... NIL NIL 1,394,200 8.78

Sudhir Harihar Kale ................................................ NIL NIL 824,400 5.19

Nanda Narendra Kale ............................................ NIL NIL 828,900 5.22
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

e. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought
back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

During the five year period ended 30th June 2012

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 1 February 2012 approved the buyback of its own fully
paid up equity shares of ` 10/- each from the existing owners of equity shares other than Accelya Holding World S. L.,
the promoter at a price not exceeding ` 160 per equity share payable in cash, for an aggregate amount not exceeding
` 129,750,080 which represents 10% of the aggregate paid-up equity capital and free reserves of the Company as on
30 June 2011. As on 2 May 2012, i.e. on the date of closure of the Buy-back offer, the Company has bought back
953,826 Equity Shares on BSE and NSE for a total consideration of ` 129,737,172 which represents 99.99% of the buy-
back size of ` 129,750,080.

f. Employee stock option

Terms attached to stock option granted to employee are described in note 35 regarding employee based payments.

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per last financial statement ................................................................................... - -
Add : Transfer from securities premium .................................................................................. 9,538,260 -

Closing Balance 9,538,260 -

Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statement ................................................................................... 446,721,270 379,059,407
Add : Premium on shares allotted .............................................................................................. - 67,661,863
Less: Premium adjusted on buyback of shares .................................................................... (120,198,912) -
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve ......................................................................... (9,538,260) -

Closing Balance ................................................................................................................................ 316,984,098 446,721,270

General reserve
Balance as per last financial statement ................................................................................... 44,701,165 31,375,160
Add : Transfer from statement of Profit and Loss ................................................................ 31,414,681 13,326,006

Closing Balance ................................................................................................................................ 76,115,846 44,701,165

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as per last financial statements ................................................................................. 647,372,261 567,006,814
Profit for the year ............................................................................................................................... 314,146,813 133,260,055

Less: Appropriations
Transfer to general reserve ............................................................................................................ 31,414,681 13,326,006
Interim Dividend (amount per share ` 13.5) ......................................................................... 214,382,306 -
Tax on Interim equity dividend ................................................................................................... 34,778,170 -
Proposed final equity dividend (amount per share ` 10 (30 June 2011 : ` 2/-)) .. 149,262,610 31,760,174
Tax on proposed equity dividend .............................................................................................. 24,214,130 5,152,294
Dividend paid (2009-10) ................................................................................................................. - 2,278,114
Dividend distribution tax (2009-10) .......................................................................................... - 378,020

Total appropriations ......................................................................................................................... 454,051,897 52,894,608

Net surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss ................................................................. 507,467,177 647,372,261

Total reserve and surplus ........................................................................................................... 910,105,381 1,138,794,696
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 9)

30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `

Finance lease obligations (secured) ................................ - 2,896,693 4,026,645 8,895,861

Vehicle loans from bank/financial
institution (secured) ............................................................... 681,208 1,400,588 719,380 954,658

681,208 4,297,281 4,746,025 9,850,519

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings ............................................................... 681,208 4,297,281 4,746,025 9,850,519

Unsecured borrowings .......................................................... - - - -

Net amount ............................................................................... 681,208 4,297,281 4,746,025 9,850,519

Finance lease obligations is secured by hypothecation of underlying computer equipment

Vehicle loan from bank/financial institution is secured by hypothecation of underlying vehicle

6 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Deposit received ................................................................................................................................ 1,994,074 2,309,361

Others ..................................................................................................................................................... 6,996,305 3,760,853

8,990,379 6,070,214

7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 10)

30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `

Provision for employee benefit

- Leave encashment (refer note 36 ) ............................... 38,435,817 40,634,425 6,215,457 6,753,544

Other provision ......................................................................... 33,602,365 - - -

72,038,182 40,634,425 6,215,457 6,753,544

8 TRADE PAYABLES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Trade payable

- dues to micro and small enterprises ............................................................................... - -

- dues to others ........................................................................................................................... 82,507,837 36,633,033

82,507,837 36,633,033
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9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of finance lease obligations ................................................................... 4,026,645 8,895,861

Current maturities of vehicle loans from bank .................................................................... 719,380 954,658

Advances from customers ............................................................................................................. 6,766,959 7,376,640

Income received in advance ......................................................................................................... 28,252,552 6,237,843

Other liabilities .................................................................................................................................... 106,051,383 108,465,678

Unpaid Dividend ................................................................................................................................ 3,239,357 1,459,852

Provident fund payable .................................................................................................................. 3,398,088 2,707,818

Profession tax payable ..................................................................................................................... 244,825 197,300

TDS payable ......................................................................................................................................... 8,582,804 6,915,341

VAT payable .......................................................................................................................................... 96,171 259,025

Service tax payable ........................................................................................................................... - 13,530,623

161,378,164 157,000,639

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund

10 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefit

- Leave encashment ................................................................................................................... 6,215,457 6,753,544

- Gratuity ......................................................................................................................................... 4,045,433 3,519,134

Proposed Dividend ........................................................................................................................... 149,262,610 31,760,174

Tax on Proposed Dividend ............................................................................................................ 24,214,130 5,152,294

Others ..................................................................................................................................................... 32,545,607 9,111,106

Provision for litigations ................................................................................................................... 1,000,000 1,000,000

Provision for mark to market loss on forward contract ................................................... 29,349,208 -

Provision for Income Tax ................................................................................................................ 22,157,916 -

268,790,361 57,296,252

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
 ` `
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11 TANGIBLE ASSETS

Building Plant and Furniture and
 machinery fixture Vehicle Total

` ` ` ` `

Cost

At 1 April 2010 ......................................... 63,259,128 194,099,125 39,697,369 19,249,440 316,305,062

Additions .................................................... - 24,749,410 1,290,465 2,263,318 28,303,193

Deletions/Disposals ............................... - 32,435,816 1,398,982 7,567,638 41,402,436

As at 30 June 2011 ........................ 63,259,128 186,412,719 39,588,852 13,945,120 303,205,819

Additions .................................................... - 88,012,375 5,296,575 5,320,927 98,629,877

Deletions/Disposals ............................... - 11,605,760 215,562 3,308,845 15,130,167

As at 30 June 2012 ........................ 63,259,128 262,819,334 44,669,865 15,957,202 386,705,529

Depreciation

At 1 April 2010 ......................................... 27,536,762 142,169,472 28,250,534 11,738,112 209,694,880

Charge for the year ................................ (1,363,269) 33,768,027 8,381,895 4,113,281 44,899,934

Deletions/Disposals ............................... - 23,232,225 892,732 5,695,101 29,820,058

As at 30 June 2011 ........................ 26,173,493 152,705,274 35,739,697 10,156,292 224,774,756

Charge for the year ................................ 2,114,415 29,046,231 2,677,745 1,870,197 35,708,588

Deletions/Disposals ............................... - 11,605,682 211,625 3,308,845 15,126,152

As at 30 June 2012 ........................ 28,287,908 170,145,823 38,205,817 8,717,644 245,357,192

Net Block

As at 30 June 2011 ........................ 37,085,635 33,707,445 3,849,155 3,788,828 78,431,063

As at 30 June 2012 ........................ 34,971,220 92,673,511 6,464,048 7,239,558 141,348,337

The gross and net carrying amount of assets acquired under finance lease and included in above is as follows:

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Gross Block Accumulated Net Block Gross Block Accumulated Net Block
depreciation/ depreciation/
Impairment Impairment

` ` ` ` ` `

Plant and machinery .......... 59,404,341 56,711,464 2,692,877 59,404,341 48,122,107 11,282,234

59,404,341 56,711,464 2,692,877 59,404,341 48,122,107 11,282,234

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Developed software Acquired software Total

` ` `

Gross Block

At 1 April 2010 ................................................................................ 330,279,634 135,850,491 466,130,125

Purchase/Internal development .............................................. 41,231,754 25,314,374 66,546,128

Deletions/Disposals ...................................................................... 164,501,256 8,733,869 173,235,125

As at 30 June 2011 ....................................................... 207,010,132 152,430,996 359,441,128

Purchase/Internal development .............................................. 68,230,429 14,773,960 83,004,389

Deletions/Disposals ...................................................................... - -

As at 30 June 2012 ....................................................... 275,240,561 167,204,956 442,445,517

Amortisation

At 1 April 2010 ................................................................................ 159,964,849 117,662,245 277,627,094

Charge for the year ....................................................................... 96,173,901 17,850,898 114,024,799

Deletions/Disposals ...................................................................... 99,620,531 3,130,693 102,751,224

As at 30 June 2011 ....................................................... 156,518,219 132,382,450 288,900,669

Charge for the year ....................................................................... 23,298,026 12,231,647 35,529,673

Deletions/Disposals ...................................................................... - -

As at 30 June 2012 ....................................................... 179,816,245 144,614,097 324,430,342

Net Block
As at 30 June 2011 ....................................................... 50,491,913 20,048,546 70,540,460

As at 30 June 2012 ....................................................... 95,424,317 22,590,859 118,015,176

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Trade investments (unquoted at cost, unless otherwise stated)

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries

1,300,000 (2011: 1,300,000) Class A voting common stock of
Kale Softech Inc., of $0.01 each fully paid up ....................................................................... 57,979,585 57,979,585

Nil (2011: 42,036) equity shares of Synetairos Technologies Limited,
of `10 each fully paid up ............................................................................................................... - 7,977,004

4,150,000 (2011: 4,150,000) equity shares of Kale Revenue Assurance
Services Limited of £1.0 each fully paid up ........................................................................... 324,068,060 324,068,060

Investment in preference shares of subsidiaries

450,000 (2011: 450,000) 5% Redeemable preferred stock of
Kale Softech Inc. of $1.0 each fully paid up ........................................................................... 21,434,000 21,434,000

Investments in Shares of Banks

Rupee Co-op. Bank Limited

5,000 equity shares of `10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 5,000 equity shares of `10 each fully paid up) ...................................... 50,000 50,000

Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited

1,000 equity shares of `10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,000 equity shares of `10 each fully paid up) ...................................... 10,000 10,000

403,541,645 411,518,649

14 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred tax assets:

Excess of depreciation/amortization on fixed assets under income tax law over 11,459,448 26,817,842

depreciation/amortization provided in accounts

Provision for leave ............................................................................................................................. 14,487,106 15,375,027

Provision for doubtful debts ......................................................................................................... 23,581,314 10,200,019

Expenses deductible for tax in later years ............................................................................. 13,603,096 1,581,958

63,130,964 53,974,846

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
 ` `
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15 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 19)

30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `

Unsecured, considered good

Advances recoverable in cash or kind ............................ 175,453 216,000 - -

Advance income-tax (net of provision for tax) ........... 11,927,518 43,004,377 23,390,865 6,338,388

MAT credit entitlement ......................................................... - - - 21,710,215

Prepaid expenses ..................................................................... 2,195,538 657,817 21,722,725 12,796,610

Deposits ....................................................................................... 51,842,050 43,524,236 8,323,407 380,000

66,140,559 87,402,430 53,436,997 41,225,213

16 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Interest accrued on bank deposits ............................................................................................ 110,660 147,123

110,660 147,123

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Unsecured

Receivables for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due
for payment

Considered good ............................................................................................................................... 1,982,129 14,275,700

Considered doubtful ........................................................................................................................ 76,896,634 26,312,199

Less: Provision for doubtful receivable ..................................................................................... (76,896,634) (26,312,199)

1,982,129 14,275,700

Other receivables

Considered good ............................................................................................................................... 231,837,524 241,049,850

Considered doubtful ........................................................................................................................ 1,475,733 10,265,659

Less: Provision for doubtful receivable ..................................................................................... (1,475,733) (10,265,659)

231,837,524 241,049,850

233,819,653 255,325,550

Trade receivables include:

Due from subsidiaries ...................................................................................................................... 15,226,320 6,689,103

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks

On current accounts ......................................................................................................................... 46,164,124 81,470,186

-On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 to 12 months) .............................. 90,000,000 120,100,000

-On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) ............................ 55,000,000 50,300,000

Margin money deposits .................................................................................................................. 7,201,237 8,958,874

Unpaid dividend ................................................................................................................................ 3,239,357 1,459,852

201,604,718 262,288,912

Margin money deposits

Margin money deposit represent deposit with banks given to various authorities amounting to ` 7,201,237 (2011:
` 8,958,874) which are due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date.

19 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advance .................................................................................................................................. 44,854,681 -

Loans and advances ......................................................................................................................... 18,373,668 16,517,191

Advances recoverable in cash or kind ...................................................................................... 18,748,115 126,248,017

Prepaid expenses ............................................................................................................................... 21,722,725 12,796,610

Deposits ................................................................................................................................................. 8,323,407 380,000

MAT credit entitlement ................................................................................................................... - 21,710,215

Advance income-tax (net of provision for tax) ..................................................................... 23,390,865 6,338,388

135,413,461 183,990,421

Loans and advances include:

Due from subsidiaries ...................................................................................................................... 18,373,668 16,517,191

20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Interest accrued on bank deposits ............................................................................................ 2,329,643 3,389,385

Unbilled revenue ............................................................................................................................... 252,369,142 154,514,568

Forward contract receivable ......................................................................................................... 6,452,371 -

Dividend on investment ................................................................................................................. 1,251,675 250,875

262,402,831 158,154,828

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
 ` `
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21 OTHER INCOME

Interest on bank deposits .............................................................................................................. 24,665,214 8,606,832

Interest on income tax refunds ................................................................................................... - 2,615,172

Foreign exchange gain, net ........................................................................................................... 32,309,698 4,877,797

Credit balances written back ........................................................................................................ 18,822,987 11,525,365

Common amenities recharged .................................................................................................... - 2,946,003

Dividend ................................................................................................................................................ 1,175,600 6,517,625

Profit on sale of asset,net ............................................................................................................... 816,174 1,531,495

Miscellaneous income ..................................................................................................................... 3,619,794 8,363,589

81,409,467 46,983,878

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus ............................................................................................................. 724,794,808 799,722,100

Contribution to provident fund and other funds ............................................................... 24,107,097 18,816,781

Staff welfare expenses ..................................................................................................................... 32,609,639 39,386,654

781,511,544 857,925,535

23 FINANCE COSTS

Finance charges .................................................................................................................................. 7,128,175 8,208,548

Other interest ...................................................................................................................................... 156,133 1,046,792

7,284,308 9,255,340

24 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation of tangible assets ................................................................................................... 35,708,588 44,899,934

Amortisation of intangible assets .............................................................................................. 35,529,673 114,024,799

71,238,261 158,924,733

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `
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25 OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisement and sales promotion ........................................................................................ 27,065,429 16,727,394

Auditors Remuneration (Refer note below) ........................................................................... 2,600,000 1,130,000

Bad debts written off ....................................................................................................................... 7,012,706 3,822,280

Buyback expenses ............................................................................................................................. 3,560,253 -

Commission and brokerage .......................................................................................................... 59,411,018 61,724,707

Communication charges ................................................................................................................ 19,123,247 23,924,027

Computer consumables .................................................................................................................. 554,867 1,572,060

Connectivity charges ........................................................................................................................ 7,780,542 15,512,978

Contractor charges ............................................................................................................................ 6,071,752 6,859,919

Data processing charges ................................................................................................................ 27,470,180 24,548,237

Director’s Commission ..................................................................................................................... 300,000 300,000

Director’s sitting and committee fees ...................................................................................... 330,000 160,000

Donation ................................................................................................................................................ 730,000 1,050,000

Insurance ............................................................................................................................................... 2,961,964 4,481,057

Legal and professional .................................................................................................................... 14,486,604 13,976,408

Management Fees ............................................................................................................................. 15,333,226 -

Mark to market loss on forward contract ............................................................................... 29,349,208 -

Membership and subscription ..................................................................................................... 5,972,962 14,154,424

Miscellaneous expenses ................................................................................................................. 30,350,798 20,031,754

Power, fuel and water charges ..................................................................................................... 22,348,644 27,147,414

Printing and stationery ................................................................................................................... 2,983,966 3,224,234

Provision for doubtful debts, net of bad debt written off .............................................. 41,794,509 31,437,878

Provision for expenses recoverable ........................................................................................... 1,797,522 -

Rates and taxes ................................................................................................................................... 2,441,341 4,736,221

Recruitment expenses ..................................................................................................................... 3,300,578 10,187,496

Rent (refer note 39) .......................................................................................................................... 80,700,975 101,049,564

Repair and maintenance :

- Machinery .................................................................................................................................... 2,118,996 2,019,667

- Others ............................................................................................................................................ 21,315,728 17,308,651

Software and maintenance ........................................................................................................... 31,405,939 19,052,978

Technical consultants charges ..................................................................................................... 99,382,233 67,719,614

Travelling and conveyance ............................................................................................................ 49,997,877 59,829,825

620,053,063 553,688,787

Auditor’s Remuneration

Audit Fees ............................................................................................................................................. 2,600,000 1,130,000

Other services (tax audit and certification) ........................................................................... 100,000 -

Out of pocket expenses .................................................................................................................. 126,900 40,225

2,826,900 1,170,225

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `
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15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` `
26 PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COST CAPITALISED INCLUDE

Payroll cost ............................................................................................................................................ 17,722,396 25,892,913

Consultant fees ................................................................................................................................... 25,997,846 5,995,418

Other direct cost ................................................................................................................................ 580,526 2,012,373

Other ancillary cost ........................................................................................................................... 12,864 216,001

44,313,632 34,116,705

27 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

1 The Company has sold its entire shareholding in Synetairos Technologies Limited, a subsidiary of the Company on
1 July 2011 to Saksoft Limited as per the Share Purchase Agreement dated 1 July 2011, which has resulted into a gain
of ` 7,770,692.

2 During the period ended June’11 Kale Technologies Limited, UK, a subsidiary was wound up. The resultant gain of
` 10,509,605/- representing the surplus over investment made by the company has been recorded as a gain on
disposal of investments under the head “Exceptional Item”.

3 During the period ended June’11 the board of directors of the company, at its meeting held on 6 September 2010,
authorised a resolution approving the sale of the logistics business of the company to Kale Logistics solution Private
Limited, as a going concern, on a slump sale basis, with effect from 1 October 2010. The loss on account of this sale
amounting to ` 44,654,807/- has been included in the profit and loss account under the head “Exceptional Item”.

28 PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSE

15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Leave travel expense - 6,035,194

Incentives - 37,987,687

Cenvat credit availed - (5,525,204)

Excess Provision of Tax for prior years adjusted - (4,325,489)

Management Fees - 729,732

- 34,901,920

29 EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE

15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Number of shares (face value `10 each) 14,926,261 15,880,087

Profit after tax 314,146,813 133,260,055

Weighted average number of shares considered for Basic EPS 15,605,914 15,292,864

Weighted average number of shares considered for Diluted EPS 15,605,914 15,292,864

Basic and Diluted EPS:

Basic earnings per share 20.13 8.71

Diluted earnings per share 20.13 8.71

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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30 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account,
to the extent not provided (net of advances) ...................................................................... 45,749,615 8,191,458

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Claims against the Company pertaining to Sales Tax with
Asst. Commissioner of Sales Tax, (Appeals) - For F.Y. 2001-02
(disallowance of Software services and maintenance of software) ............................ 7,870,739 7,870,739

32 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Revenue from sale of software and services ......................................................................... 1,529,477,794 1,316,008,146

Dividend income ................................................................................................................................ 1,173,600 1,261,125

Other income ...................................................................................................................................... 1,450,509 4,382,276

33 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Consultancy and professional charges .................................................................................... 36,258,789 28,681,814

Other expenses ................................................................................................................................... 48,941,443 28,346,127

Sale commission ................................................................................................................................. 48,551,539 55,758,455

Membership and subscription ..................................................................................................... 3,529,265 12,910,994

Payroll expense ................................................................................................................................... 24,010,230 27,285,272

Travelling expenses (net) ................................................................................................................ 7,573,614 12,784,107

Management Fees ............................................................................................................................. 15,333,226 -

34 NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

15 Month
Year of remittance (ending on) Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` `

Period to which the dividend relates ....................................................................................... 2010-11 2009-10

Numbers of non-resident shareholders ................................................................................... 21 20

Numbers of equity shares held on which dividend was due ........................................ 11,259,140 71,101

Amount remitted ............................................................................................................................... 22,518,280 142,202

Period to which it relates 2011-12
(Interim dividend)

Numbers of non-resident shareholders ................................................................................... 21

Numbers of equity shares held on which dividend was due ........................................ 11,272,423

Amount remitted ............................................................................................................................... 152,177,713

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `
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35 EMPLOYEE’S STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP)

The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employee. During the year ended 30 June 2012, an employee
stock option plan (ESOP) was not in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant for the previous year are as
below:

Employee’s Stock Option Plan (ESOP)-2003

15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Outstanding at the beginning of the year ............................................................................. - 498,489

Granted during the year ................................................................................................................. - -

Forfeited (Lapsed) during the year ............................................................................................ - 17,010

Exercised during the year .............................................................................................................. - 481,479

Outstanding at the end of the year .......................................................................................... - -

Employee’s Stock Option Plan (ESOP)-2006

Outstanding at the beginning of the year ............................................................................. - 886,125

Granted during the year ................................................................................................................. - -

Forfeited (Lapsed) during the year ............................................................................................ - 27,061

Exercised during the year .............................................................................................................. - 859,064

Outstanding at the end of the year .......................................................................................... - -

36 RETIREMENT BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES

Gratuity
In accordance with Accounting Standards 15 (Revised) on Employee Benefits and applicable Indian laws, the Company
provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (Gratuity Plan). The Company provides the gratuity benefit through
annual contributions to a fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). LIC administers the plan and
determines the contribution required to be paid by the Company.

Changes in present value of obligations 15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

a) Liability recognised in the balance sheet

i) Present value of obligation

Opening balance ............................................................................................................ 26,603,372 17,005,147

Current service cost ...................................................................................................... 5,931,878 6,197,408

Past service cost .............................................................................................................. - 3,590,236

Interest cost ...................................................................................................................... 2,120,777 1,691,039

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations ...................................................................... (3,675,575) 3,790,002

Benefits paid ..................................................................................................................... (2,103,679) (5,670,460)

Closing balance ............................................................................................................... 28,876,773 26,603,372

ii) Fair value of plan assets

Opening balance ............................................................................................................ 23,084,238 17,421,677

Expected return on plan assets ............................................................................... 2,162,201 2,395,553

Employer’s contributions ............................................................................................ 2,685,504 10,000,000

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets ..................................................................... (996,924) (1,062,532)

Benefits paid ..................................................................................................................... (2,103,679) (5,670,460)

Closing balance ............................................................................................................... 24,831,340 23,084,238

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet(i)-(ii) ............................................... 4,045,433 3,519,134

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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b) Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost ................................................................................................................ 5,931,878 6,197,408

Past service cost ....................................................................................................................... - 3,590,236

Interest Cost ............................................................................................................................... 2,120,777 1,691,039

Expected return on plan assets ......................................................................................... (2,162,201) (2,395,553)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised during the period ......................................... (2,678,651) 4,852,534

Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss ............................................. 3,211,803 13,935,664

c) Break up of Plan assets

LIC of India - Insurer Managed Fund .............................................................................. 100.00% 100.00%

d) Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of discounting ................................................................................................................. 8.20% 8.30%

Expected return on plan assets ......................................................................................... 9.25% 9.25%

Rate of increase in basic salary .......................................................................................... 6.00% 6.00%

Attrition rate ............................................................................................................................... 15.00% 15.00%

Mortality ....................................................................................................................................... LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
ultimate ultimate

Normal retirement age .......................................................................................................... 58 years 58 years

Experience adjustment

Present value of obligation ................................................................................................. 28,876,773 26,603,372

Plan assets ................................................................................................................................... 24,831,340 23,084,238

Surplus (deficit) ......................................................................................................................... (4,045,433) (3,519,134)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (loss)/gain ............................................ 3,819,451 (1,196,040)

Experience adjustments on plan assets (loss)/gain .................................................. (996,924) (543,820)

Leave encashment

In accordance with Accounting Standards 15 (Revised) on Employee Benefits,
the Company provides for leave salary on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of discounting .......................................................................................................................... 8.20% 8.30%

Rate of increase in cost to company ......................................................................................... 12.00% 12.00%

Attrition rate ........................................................................................................................................ 15.00% 15.00%

Mortality ................................................................................................................................................ LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
 ultimate ultimate

Normal retirement age .................................................................................................................... 58 years 58 years

37 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

In accordance with paragraph 4 of Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting” prescribed in the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, issued by the central government, the Company has presented segmental information only on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements (refer note 35 of consolidated financial statements).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` `
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Related party disclosures

Related parties where control exists Name Holdings in %

Holding company Accelya Holding World SLU

Fellow Subsidiary Accelya World SLU

Accelya UK Limited

Subsidiaries Kale Softech Inc 100%

Kale Revenue Assurance Services Limited 100%

Zero Octa UK Limited 100%

Zero Octa Selective Sourcing India Private Limited 100%

Zero Octa Recruitment and Training Private Limited 100%

Synetairos Technologies Limited * 49%

Key management personnel Philippe Lesueur - Chairman

Vipul Jain - Managing Director

 Composition of the Board is controlled by Accelya Kale Solutions Limited

The Company has sold its entire shareholding in Synetairos Technologies Limited, a subsidiary of the Company on 1
July 2011.

(B) Transactions with related parties

Nature of transactions Year ended Holding Fellow Subsidiaries Key Enterprises
Subsidiary management where key

personnel  management
personnel are

interested
Issue of equity shares 30 June 2012 - - - - -

30 June 2011 - - - 22,885,200 -
Services rendered by the Company 30 June 2012 - 7,102,927 295,384,798 - -

30 June 2011 - - 173,025,334 - -
Services received by the Company 30 June 2012 - 5,397,504 7,158,626 - -

30 June 2011 - - 9,121,473 - -
Claims raised for expenses 30 June 2012 8,245,066 - 19,568,494 - -

30 June 2011 - - 20,781,805 - 3,628,710
Claims received for expenses 30 June 2012 18,077,358 - 45,162,926 - -

30 June 2011 - - 16,521,917 - -
Investment in subsidiary 30 June 2012 - - - - -

30 June 2011 - - 81,312,000 - -
Remuneration 30 June 2012 - - - 21,093,227 -

30 June 2011 - - - 27,160,578 -
Transfer of business asset 30 June 2012 - - - - -

30 June 2011 - - - - 81,467,638
Amount paid on behalf of Kale Logistics 30 June 2012 - - - - -
Solutions Private Limited 30 June 2011 - - - - 73,911,882

Balances outstanding
Payable 30 June 2012 1,332,568 5,321,232 38,598,653 2,516,148 -

30 June 2011 - - 16,413,196 750,000 -
Receivable 30 June 2012 - 740,734 16,677,210 - -

30 June 2011 - - 35,267,694 - 114,002,105
Investment in subsidiary 30 June 2012 - - 403,481,645 - -

30 June 2011 - - 411,458,649 - -

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(C) Of the above items, transactions in excess 10% of the total related
party transactions are as under

Nature of transaction
Income from Service rendered

Kale Softech Inc .................................................................................................................. 295,384,798 172,260,674

Zero Octa UK Limited ...................................................................................................... - 764,660

Accelya World SLU ............................................................................................................. 7,102,927 -

Purchase of services

Synetairos Technologies Ltd. ........................................................................................ - 742,782

Zero Octa Selective Sourcing India Private Limited .......................................... 7,158,626 8,378,690

Accelya World SLU ............................................................................................................. 76,272 -

Accelya UK Limited ........................................................................................................... 5,321,232 -

Expenses charged to group companies

Kale Softech Inc .................................................................................................................. 1,323,090 606,797

Synetairos Technologies Ltd. ........................................................................................ - 1,500,000

Zero Octa UK Limited ...................................................................................................... 18,002,143 18,613,167

Zero Octa Selective Sourcing India Private Limited .......................................... 243,261 361,841

Accelya Holding World SLU ........................................................................................... 8,245,066 -

Expenses charged by group companies

Kale Softech Inc .................................................................................................................. 44,933,106 16,141,411

Zero Octa UK Limited ...................................................................................................... 229,820 380,506

Accelya Holding World SLU ........................................................................................... 18,077,358 -

Investment in subsidiary

Kale Revenue Assurance Services Limited ............................................................. - 81,312,000

Salary/remuneration

Vipul Jain ............................................................................................................................... 21,093,227 27,160,578

Payables

Kale Softech Inc .................................................................................................................. 36,410,731 16,098,592

Zero Octa Selective Sourcing India Private Limited .......................................... 2,187,923 314,604

Accelya Holding World SLU ........................................................................................... 1,332,568 -

Vipul Jain ............................................................................................................................... 2,516,148 750,000

Accelya UK Limited ........................................................................................................... 5,321,232 -

Receivables

Kale Softech Inc .................................................................................................................. - 17,223,045

Zero Octa UK Limited ...................................................................................................... 10,848,174 13,298,858

Kale Revenue Assurance Services Limited ............................................................. 5,787,017 4,745,791

Accelya World SLU ............................................................................................................. 740,734 -

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 15 Month
Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Financial Statements



CCCCCMMMMMYYYYYKKKKK

26th Annual Report 2011-12 Accelya Kale Solutions Limited

44— Ruby/L:/Sales/ShyamB irde/Accelya Kale Solution AR 2012/Accelya Kale Solution  Main Account 2012.pmd--- SBC/17-9/NSS/17/9/vk17-9/28-9

44

39 LEASES

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease comprise of computer hardware. There are no exceptional/restrictive covenants in the
lease agreements.

The minimum lease payment outstanding and their present value at the balance sheet date that have been capitalized are
as follows :

Particulars Year ended 30 June 2012 For the 15 month period ended
30 June 2011

Minimum lease Present value of Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease payments payments lease payments

` ` ` `

Not later than one year 3,899,280 3,516,548 9,059,332 7,968,997

Later than one year but not later
than five years - - 3,597,547 3,313,460

Particulars Year ended For the
30 June 2012  15 month

period ended
30 June 2011

` `

Minimum lease payments as above 3,899,680 12,656,879

Less: finance charges 383,133 1,374,422

Present Value of Lease Payments 3,516,547 11,282,457

Operating lease

The lease rental for office premises, guest house and godown charged to statement of profit and loss aggregates to
`80,700,975 (previous year `101,049,564).

Future minimum lease commitments in respect of non cancellable operating leases:

Year ended For the
30 June 2012  15 month

period ended
30 June 2011

` `

Not later than one year 70,416,760 36,058,289

Later than one year and not later than five years 249,394,208 7,139,143

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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40 DISCLOSURE UNDER MICRO SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

The Company has no dues to micro and small enterprises during the periods ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 and
as at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011

Year ended For the
30 June 2012  15 month

period ended
30 June 2011

` `

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the year end - -

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year - -

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED - -

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible - -

41 Unbilled revenue include revenue based on percentage of completion basis ` 131,959,202/- (previous year ` 73,375,933/-)

42 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT

The company uses forward exchange contracts and cross-currency option to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign
exchange rates

I. Outstanding derivative instruments

Category Currency Hedge 30 June 2012

$ `̀̀̀̀

Forward exchange contract USD 5,157,285 286,899,765
(to hedge trade receivables)

Forward exchange contract USD 6,842,715 380,660,235
(to hedge highly probable exports)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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II. Unhedge Foreign Currency exposures

Foreign currency as at 30 June 2012 as at 30 June 2011

`̀̀̀̀ Foreign currency `̀̀̀̀ Foreign currency

Payable-USD 52,888,725 950,723 16,828,414 377,319

Payable-GBP 123,584 1,414 227,241 3,172

Payable-Euro 3,892,514 55,260 - -

Receivables – EURO 20,139,293 285,907 12,687,130 195,910

Receivables – AUD 4,558,332 80,055 - -

Receivables – GBP 9,330,160 106,789 7,006,228 97,784

Receivables – USD 1,251,675 22,500 71,183,951 1,596,053

Receivables – HKD 4,302,000 600,000 32,820,059 5,727,759

As per our report of even date attached.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012
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Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors
Accelya Kale Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Kale Consultants Limited)

We have audited the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of Accelya Kale Solutions Limited (formerly known as Kale Consultants
Limited) (“the Company” or “the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (as per the list appearing in schedule 1 to the consolidated
financial statements) [collectively referred to as “the Group”] as at 30 June 2012, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012, annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 – ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ prescribed by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules 2006.

Based on our audit as aforesaid and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

i. in the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2012;

ii. in the case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012;
and

iii. in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012.

For B S R & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Mumbai Partner
1 August 2012 Membership No: 042070
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Notes 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
as at 30 June 2012 ` `

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s funds
Share capital .............................................................................................. 3 149,268,660 158,806,920
Reserves and surplus ............................................................................. 4 1,226,070,702 1,284,692,190

1,375,339,362 1,443,499,110

Minority Interest .................................................................. - 15,839,354
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings .......................................................................... 5 681,208 4,415,385
Other long-term liabilities ................................................................... 6 10,255,266 6,278,155
Long-term provisions ............................................................................. 7 80,049,933 46,034,694

90,986,407 56,728,234
Current liabilities
Trade payables .......................................................................................... 8 38,493,677 23,473,197
Other current liabilities ......................................................................... 9 174,967,178 174,861,407
Short-term provisions ............................................................................ 10 300,718,360 90,538,953

514,179,215 288,873,557

TOTAL ................................................................................ 1,980,504,984 1,804,940,255

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill ..................................................................................................... 402,110,417 337,316,621
Fixed assets
Tangible assets ......................................................................................... 11 163,397,359 85,904,350
Intangible assets ...................................................................................... 12 121,714,472 75,793,751
Capital work-in-progress ...................................................................... 27,789,449 10,508,386
Intangible assets under development ........................................... 442,719 27,250,791
Non-current investments ..................................................................... 13 60,000 60,000
Deferred tax assets (net) ...................................................................... 14 67,494,232 59,789,579
Long term loans and advances ......................................................... 15 76,396,920 125,680,394
Other non-current assets ..................................................................... 16 110,660 147,123

859,516,228 722,450,995
Current assets
Trade receivables ..................................................................................... 17 317,696,765 338,287,320
Cash and cash equivalents .................................................................. 18 400,629,515 415,788,879
Short term loans and advances ........................................................ 19 132,741,730 155,593,251
Other current assets ............................................................................... 20 269,920,746 172,819,810

1,120,988,756 1,082,489,260

Total ................................................................................ 1,980,504,984 1,804,940,255

Significant accounting policies ......................................................... 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Notes 15 month
for the year ended 30 June 2012 Year ended period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Revenue from operations

Sale of services ......................................................................................... 2,173,720,645 2,210,902,552

Other income ............................................................................................ 21 122,218,536 56,622,017

Total revenue 2,295,939,181 2,267,524,569

Expenses

Employee benefits expense ................................................................ 22 969,526,337 1,157,424,493

Finance costs ............................................................................................. 23 7,913,630 9,943,084

Depreciation and amortization expense ...................................... 24 80,696,399 167,094,398

Other expenses ........................................................................................ 25 687,510,150 656,019,291

Less: Product development cost capitalised ............................... 26 (44,313,632) (34,116,705)

Total expenses 1,701,332,884 1,956,364,561

Profit before exceptional items and tax ........................... 594,606,297 311,160,008

Exceptional items income/(expense) .............................................. 27 7,770,692 (34,145,202)

Prior period income/(expense) .......................................................... 28 - (34,604,893)

Profit before tax .................................................................. 602,376,989 242,409,913

Tax expense

Current tax .................................................................................................. 203,049,450 84,277,946

Deferred tax

Current period ................................................................................. (8,526,881) (33,875,913)

Prior period ....................................................................................... - (15,207,162)

MAT credit entitlement ............................................................... - (5,250,930)

Profit after tax ..................................................................... 407,854,420 212,465,972

Minority Interest ...................................................................................... - 3,019,737

Profit for the period 407,854,420 209,446,235

Earnings per equity share (face value of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each) ....... 29

Basic ..................................................................................................... 26.13 13.70

Diluted ..................................................................................................... 26.13 13.70

Significant accounting policies ......................................................... 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of this statement of profit and loss
As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012
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Consolidated Cash flow statement 15 month
for the year ended 30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Cash Flows from operating activities

Net Profit before tax and exceptional item ........................................................................ 594,606,299 276,555,115

Adjustment for:

Depreciation/amortization ............................................................................................... 80,696,399 167,094,398

(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed asset .................................................................................. (879,362) (1,695,220)

Provision for doubtful debts ............................................................................................ 42,090,377 31,000,919

Bad debts written off .......................................................................................................... 9,755,346 7,249,830

Credit balances written back ........................................................................................... (21,734,438) (11,525,365)

Unrealised exchange gain ................................................................................................ (18,810,759) (439,942)

Interest income ...................................................................................................................... (31,525,009) (10,704,712)

Finance cost ............................................................................................................................ 7,913,630 9,943,084

Mark to market loss on derivative contract .............................................................. 29,349,208 -

Amortisation of premium on forward exchange contract ................................. (6,452,371) -

Dividend income ................................................................................................................... (2,000) (2,000)

Provision for Doubtful deposit ....................................................................................... 300,000 -

Operating cash flow before working capital changes ................................................... 685,307,319 467,476,107

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities and provision ................................................. 98,668,544 39,829,216

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables ............................................................................. (33,727,503) (3,719,472)

Decrease/(increase) in long-term loans and advances .................................................. 75,368,102 (78,769,027)

Decrease/(increase) in other current assets ....................................................................... (90,149,284) (95,742,315)

Cash generated from operations ............................................................................................ 735,467,178 329,074,509

Taxes paid, net ................................................................................................................................. (132,484,863) (65,512,244)

Net cash provided by operating activities (A) ................................................ 602,982,315 263,562,265

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets .............................................................................................................. (239,439,199) (129,565,464)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets .......................................................................................... 1,238,436 3,021,272

Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiary ...................................................... 15,747,696 -

Disposal consideration discharged in a subsidiary by cash and cash equivalents (18,645,314) -

Interest received ............................................................................................................................. 30,548,825 8,374,129

Dividend received on other investments ............................................................................ 2,000 2,000

Payment of purchase consideration for acquisition ....................................................... - (81,912,000)

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) ....................................................... (210,547,556) (200,080,063)
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Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital ..................................................................................... - 80,341,767

Repayment on buyback of shares .......................................................................................... (129,737,172) -

Repayment of long term borrowings .................................................................................... (3,485,849) (18,241,999)

Bank overdraft ................................................................................................................................. - (10,346,598)

Dividend paid ................................................................................................................................... (284,293,439) (41,901,548)

Interest paid ...................................................................................................................................... (7,913,630) (9,943,084)

Net cash (used by) financing activities (C ) ..................................................... (425,430,090) (91,462)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) ............................... (32,995,331) 63,390,740

Effect of exchange differences on cash and
cash equivalents held in foreign currency .......................................................................... 17,835,967 4,911,067

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ............................................ 415,788,879 347,487,072

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year .......................................................... 400,629,515 415,788,879

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

On current accounts ..................................................................................................................... 143,736,594 182,273,231

On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 to 12 months) ............................ 175,200,000 132,600,000

On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) .......................... 71,000,000 90,300,000

Margin money deposits ............................................................................................................... 7,453,565 9,155,797

Unpaid dividend ............................................................................................................................. 3,239,357 1,459,852

Total cash and cash equivalents ....................................................................... 400,629,515 415,788,879

Consolidated Cash flow statement 15 month
for the year ended 30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Background

Accelya Kale Solutions Limited (formerly known as Kale Consultants Limited) (“Accelya”) is a software solutions provider to
the global Airline and Travel industry.

Accelya delivers world class software products, managed process, technology and hosting services. Accelya’s Industry
Solutions are driven by active partnerships with industry bodies and customers, and significant domain knowledge. Its
customised approach in deploying these solutions supports clients with best fit solutions to match their requirements.

The list of subsidiaries considered in these consolidated financial statements as at 30 June, 2012 with percentage holding
is summarized below:

Subsidiaries Country of incorporation and other particulars Percentage of Year of
holding by the consolidation

immediate parent

Kale Softech, Inc., USA A Subsidiary of Accelya incorporated under the laws of 100% 1998-99
United States of America

Kale Revenue Assurance A Subsidiary of Accelya incorporated under the laws of 100% 2007-08
Services Ltd. United Kingdom

Zero Octa UK Limited, A Subsidiary of Kale Revenue Assurance Services Ltd 100% 2007-08
UK incorporated under the laws of United Kingdom

Zero Octa Selective A Subsidiary of Zero Octa UK Limited incorporated 100% 2007-08
Sourcing India Private under the laws of India
Limited, India

Zero Octa Recruitment A Subsidiary of Zero Octa UK Limited incorporated 100% 2007-08
And Training Private under the laws of India
Limited, India

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis
of accounting and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) and the accounting
principles generally accepted in India and comply with the accounting standards prescribed in the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by the Central Government, in consultation with the National Advisory
Committee on Accounting Standards, to the extent applicable. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees.

This is the first year of application of the revised schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 for the preparation of the
financials statement of the company. The revised Schedule VI introduces some significant conceptual changes as well
as new disclosures. These include classification of all assets and liabilities into current and non-current. The previous
figures have undergone a major reclassification to comply with the requirement of the revised Schedule VI.

b) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures prescribed
under AS 21- ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ for the purpose of preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements.

The financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
balances/ transactions and resulting unrealised profits in full. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
have also been eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Minority interest’s share of profits or losses is adjusted
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against income to arrive at the net income attributable to the Company’s shareholders. Minority interest’s share of net
assets is disclosed separately in the balance sheet.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for transactions and other
similar events in similar circumstances across the Group.

c) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent liabilities as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates made in the preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future period.

d) Current- non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date;

Current assets include the current portion of non current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

(a) It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instrument do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non current financials liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents.

e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is derived primarily from transaction processing, sale of software license, related implementation and
maintenance service.

Transaction processing service i.e. airline ticket and coupon processing charges is recognized based on the rate fixed
in the contract entered with client based on the work completed.

Arrangement with customer for software development and related implementation services are fixed-price contract.
Revenue from maintenance service is on a time and material basis.

Revenue from the sale of user licenses for software applications is recognized on transfer of the title in the user
license, however in case of multiple element contracts, which require significant implementation services, where
revenue for the entire arrangement is recognized over the implementation period based upon the percentage-of-
completion.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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Revenue from fixed-price where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is
recognized based on the percentage of completion. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate
collectability revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Cost and estimated earnings in
excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue while billing in excess of cost and estimated earnings is classified
as unearned revenue. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in
which such losses become probable based on the current estimates.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue from the
end of the last billing to the balance sheet date is recognized as unbilled revenues.

The revenue from the transaction processing service is recognized based on the rate fixed in the contract entered
with client. Revenue from airline ticket and coupon processing charges is recognized on the basis of the work completed.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is recognized as
the related services are performed.

Interest income is recognized using the time proportion method based on the underlying interest rate.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

f) Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the carrying value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary recognized at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the business combination. Cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized in goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

g) Fixed assets and depreciation (including intangible assets)

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any.
Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and incidental expenditure relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed
assets incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided pro rata to the period of use on the straight-line method (‘SLM’). The depreciation rates
prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Act are considered as the minimum rates.

Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully charged to the profit and loss account in the year of acquisition.

Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided pro rata to the period of use based on management’s best estimate of useful
lives of the assets (which are shorter than those prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956) as summarised below:

Goodwill Annual impairment test whenever there is indication that
goodwill may be impaired

Leasehold improvement To be amortized over the lesser of the period of lease and the
useful life of the asset

Building 30 years

Plant and machinery 6 years

Computer equipment 4 years

Furniture, fixture, equipment and other assets 6 years

Software acquired /developed 3 to 5 years

Vehicles 10 years

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e) Revenue recognition (Continued)
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h) Research and Development cost

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development cost are expensed as incurred unless technical
and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable and company has
intention and the ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

i) Asset impairment

In accordance with AS 28-‘Impairment of Assets’, where there is an indication of impairment of the Company’s asset,
the carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any impairment. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

j) Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of acquisition
are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution, is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary
in the value of long term investments and is determined separately for each individual investment. The fair value of a
long term investment is ascertained with reference to its market value, the investee’s assets and results and the
expected cash flows from the investment.

k) Leases

Operating lease

Lease rentals under an operating lease, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Finance Lease

Assets acquired under finance lease have been recorded as an asset and liability at the inception of the lease and
have been recorded at an amount equal to lower of fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the future
minimum lease payments.

l) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognized in the profit
and loss account of the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end, are translated at the year-
end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the profit and loss account.
Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

The functional currency of Accelya Kale Solutions Limited is the Indian Rupees. The functional currencies for Zero Octa
UK and Kale Revenue Assurance Services Limited are pound and Kale Softech Inc is dollars. The translation of financial
statements of non integral subsidiaries from the local currency to functional currency is performed for assets and
liabilities using rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. The items in the profit and loss account are translated
at the average exchange rate during the period. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of non-integral operation is
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. The difference arising out of the translations
are transferred to foreign currency translation reserve under reserves and surplus.

Derivative instrument

The premium or discount on a forward exchange contract taken to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset/
liability is recognized over the period of contract. The forward exchange contract taken to hedge existing asset or
liability are translated at the closing exchange rate and resultant exchange difference are recognized in the same
manner as those on the underline foreign currency asset or liability.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Apart from forward exchange contract taken to hedge existing assets or liabilities, the company also uses derivative to
hedge its foreign currency risk exposure relating to firm commitment and highly probable transaction. In accordance
with the relevant announcement of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India, the company provide for losses in
respect of such outstanding derivative contract at the balance sheet date by marking them to market. Net gain, if any,
is not recognised. The contract are aggregated category wise, to determine the net gain/loss.

m) Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Company’s contributions during the year to Provident Fund are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Defined Benefit Plan

Company’s liability towards gratuity and leave encashment is determined by independent actuaries, using the projected
unit credit method. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The present value of the
obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the
Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss account.

Provision for leave encashment cost has been made based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary at
balance sheet date.

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence. The employees can carry-forward a portion of
the unutilized accrued compensated absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at termination
of employment for the unutilized accrued compensated absence. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The Company
measures the expected cost of compensated absence as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.

n) Income taxes

Income-tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current taxes

Provision for current income-tax is recognised in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 and is
made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

The profits pertaining to units situated at Software Technology Park, Mumbai, Pune and Goa of the Company are
exempt from taxes under the Income tax Act, 1961, being profit from industrial undertakings situated in Software
Technology Park. Under Section 10A / 10B of the Income tax Act, 1961, the Company can avail of an exemption of
profits from income tax for a period ended 31 March 2011 in relation to its undertakings set up in the Software
Technology Park.

The Income tax Act, 1961 allows credit in respect of MAT paid under section 115JB to be carried forward up to seven
succeeding assessment years. The amount of MAT credit can be set-off only in the year in which the Company is liable
to pay tax as per the normal provisions of the Income tax Act 1961, and such tax is in excess of MAT for that year. The
amount of set-off would be to the extent of excess of normal income-tax over the amount of MAT calculated as if
Section 115JB had been applied for that assessment year for which the set-off is being allowed.

In accordance with the guidance note on “Accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under
the Income tax Act, 1961 “ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, minimum alternate tax (MAT)
paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

l) Foreign currency transactions (Continued)
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income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax
within the eligible period and the asset can be measured reliably.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences
that result from differences between the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets on timing differences are
recognized only if there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. However, deferred tax assets on the timing differences when unabsorbed
depreciation and losses carried forward exist, are recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reassessed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying amounts at each balance sheet date.

o) Earnings per share (‘EPS’)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for
the year, by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of
shares considered for deriving basic earning per share, and also the weighted average number of equity shares which
may be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential shares, unless the results would be anti – dilutive.

p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company recognizes that it has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reasonably estimated.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements. However contingent assets are assessed continuously
and if it is virtually certain that economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognized in the period
in which the changes occur.

q) Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is
measured at lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

r) Employee stock options

The company determines the compensation cost based on the intrinsic value method. The compensation cost is
amortized on a straight line basis over the vesting period.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

n) Income taxes (Continued)
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Notes to the consolidated financials statement 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

20,000,000 (previous year 20,000,000) equity shares of ` 10 each ......................... 200,000,000 200,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

14,926,261 (2011: 15,880,087) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up .............. 149,262,610 158,800,870
Forfeited shares ............................................................................................................................... 6,050 6,050

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up .............................................................. 149,268,660 158,806,920

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
Nos ` Nos `

At the beginning of the period ............................... 15,880,087 158,800,870 13,814,019 138,140,190

On exercise of employee stock option ................ - - 1,340,543 13,405,430

Conversion of warrants ............................................... - - 725,525 7,255,250

Equity shares bought back by the Company .... (953,826) (9,538,260) - -

Outstanding at the end of the period .......... 14,926,261 149,262,610 15,880,087 158,800,870

b. Terms / right attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and
share in the company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to received dividend as declared from time to time.
The voting right of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show on hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up
equity capital of the company. Voting right cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums
presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to received the residual assets of the company,
remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity held.

c. Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares, issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as follows

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Accelya Holding World S.L. (“Accelya”)
11,143,295 (2011 : 6,153,587) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid 111,432,950 61,535,870

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
Nos % of total Nos % of total

shares in shares in
the class the class

Equity shares of ` ` ` ` ` 10 each fully paid

Accelya Holding World S.L. (“Accelya”) ................. 11,143,295 74.66 6,153,587 38.75

Vipul Prashad Jain ......................................................... NIL NIL 1,223,246 7.70

Narendra Harihar Kale ................................................. NIL NIL 1,394,200 8.78

Sudhir Harihar Kale ....................................................... NIL NIL 824,400 5.19

Nanda Narendra Kale ................................................... NIL NIL 828,900 5.22
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Notes to the consolidated financials statement

3 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

e. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back
during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
During the five year period ended 30th June 2012
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 1 February 2012 approved the buyback of its own fully paid
up equity shares of ` 10/- each from the existing owners of equity shares other than Accelya Holding World S. L., the
promoter at a price not exceeding ` 160 per equity share payable in cash, for an aggregate amount not exceeding
` 129,750,080 which represents 10% of the aggregate paid-up equity capital and free reserves of the Company as on
30 June 2011. As on 2 May 2012, i.e. on the date of closure of the Buy-back offer, the Company has bought back 953,826
Equity Shares on BSE and NSE for a total consideration of ` 129,737,172, which represents 99.99% of the buy-back size of
` 129,750,080.

f. Employee stock option
Terms attached to stock option granted to employee are described in note 33 regarding employee based payments.

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per last financial statement ...................................................................... - -
Add : Transfer from securities premium ..................................................................... 9,538,260 -

Closing Balance ........................................................................................... 9,538,260 -

Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statement ...................................................................... 452,471,036 384,809,174
Add : Premium on share allotted ................................................................................... - 67,661,862
Less: Premium adjusted on buyback of shares ....................................................... (120,198,912) -
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve ............................................................ (9,538,260) -
Less: Transfer on sale of subsidiary ............................................................................... (5,749,766) -

Closing Balance ........................................................................................... 316,984,098 452,471,036

General reserve
Balance as per last financial statement ...................................................................... 44,947,287 31,621,281
Add : Transfer from statement of Profit and Loss ................................................... 31,414,681 13,326,006
Less: Transfer on sale of subsidiary ............................................................................... (246,120) -

Closing Balance ........................................................................................... 76,115,848 44,947,287

Foreign Currency Translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year .......................................................................... (33,966,131) 3,243,992
Movement during the year .............................................................................................. 91,158,281 (37,210,123)

57,192,150 (33,966,131)

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last financial statements .................................................................... 821,239,998 665,561,162
Profit for the year .................................................................................................................. 407,854,420 209,446,235
Less: Accumulated profit on sale of subsidiary ....................................................... 8,802,175 -
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to general reserve ............................................................................................... 31,414,681 13,326,006
Interim Dividend (amount per share ` 13.5) ............................................................ 214,382,306 -
Tax on Interim equity dividend ...................................................................................... 34,778,170 -
Proposed final equity dividend (amount per share ` 10 (30 June 2011 : ` 2) 149,262,610 34,038,303
Tax on proposed equity dividend ................................................................................. 24,214,130 6,403,089

Total appropriations ............................................................................................................ 462,854,072 53,767,398

Net surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss .................................................... 766,240,346 821,239,998

Total reserve and surplus ........................................................................... 1,226,070,702 1,284,692,190
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5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 9)
30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `
Finance lease obligations (secured) ......................... - 2,896,693 4,026,645 8,895,861
Vehicle loans from bank (secured) ............................ 681,208 1,518,692 719,380 1,084,882

681,208 4,415,385 4,746,025 9,980,743
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings ........................................................ 681,208 4,415,385 4,746,025 9,980,743

Net amount ......................................................... 681,208 4,415,385 4,746,025 9,980,743

Finance lease obligations is secured by hypothecation of underlying computer equipment Vehicle loan from bank is
secured by hypothecation of underlying vehicle

6 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 9)
30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `
Deposit received ............................................................... 1,994,074 2,330,361 - -
Others .................................................................................... 8,261,192 3,947,794 - -

10,255,266 6,278,155 - -

7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 10)
30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `
Provision for employee benefit
- Leave encashment (refer note 34) ......................... 43,432,497 46,034,694 7,452,280 7,537,317
Other provision .................................................................. 36,617,436 - - -

80,049,933 46,034,694 7,452,280 7,537,317

8 TRADE PAYABLES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Trade payable
-dues to micro and small enterprises .......................................................................... - -
-dues to others ...................................................................................................................... 38,493,677 23,473,197

38,493,677 23,473,197

9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Current maturities of finance lease obligations ...................................................... 4,026,645 8,895,861
Current maturities of vehicle loans from bank ....................................................... 719,380 1,084,882
Advances from customers ................................................................................................ 7,396,162 7,376,640
Income received in advance ............................................................................................ 28,037,655 6,350,367
Other liabilities ....................................................................................................................... 117,397,631 123,020,752
Unpaid Dividend ................................................................................................................... 3,239,357 1,459,852
Provident fund payable ..................................................................................................... 4,129,359 3,433,903
Profession tax payable ........................................................................................................ 281,025 274,991
TDS payable ............................................................................................................................ 9,284,652 8,010,802
VAT payable ............................................................................................................................. 455,312 1,762,863
Service tax payable .............................................................................................................. - 13,190,494

174,967,178 174,861,407

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
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10 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Provision for employee benefit
- Leave encashment 7,452,280 7,537,317
- Gratuity 5,818,044 5,448,778
Proposed Dividend 149,262,610 31,760,174
Tax on Proposed Dividend 24,214,130 5,152,294
Others 35,283,554 20,538,292
Provision for credit Note 9,293,007 9,763,150
Provision for litigations 1,000,000 1,000,000
Provision for mark to market loss on forward contract 29,349,208 -
Provision for Income Tax (net of advance) 39,045,527 9,338,948

300,718,360 90,538,953

11 TANGIBLE ASSETS

Building Plant & Furniture Lease Hold
machinery & fixture Vehicle Improvement Total

` ` ` ` ` `

Cost
At 1 April 2010 ............... 63,259,128 232,137,497 44,367,838 19,776,619 18,313,268 377,854,350
Additions .......................... - 28,121,737 1,925,254 2,263,318 - 32,310,309
Deletions/Disposals ..... - 34,623,771 1,398,982 7,567,638 4,305,300 47,895,691

As at 30 June 2011 .... 63,259,128 225,635,463 44,894,110 14,472,299 14,007,968 362,268,968

Additions .......................... - 97,311,399 6,770,675 5,320,927 11,174,079 120,577,080
Deletions/Disposals ..... - 19,550,087 1,277,235 3,836,024 7,351,569 32,014,915
Revaluation ...................... - 858,403 464,893 - - 1,323,295

As at 30 June 2012 .... 63,259,128 304,255,178 50,852,443 15,957,202 17,830,479 452,154,430

Depreciation
At 1 April 2010 ............... 27,536,762 175,892,265 31,987,091 11,918,384 15,263,789 262,598,291
Charge for the year ...... (1,363,269) 35,551,214 8,866,629 4,215,519 2,704,986 49,975,079
Deletions/Disposals ..... - 25,315,709 892,732 5,695,101 4,305,210 36,208,752

As at 30 June 2011 .... 26,173,493 186,127,770 39,960,988 10,438,802 13,663,565 276,364,618

Charge for the year ...... 2,114,415 32,796,293 3,017,470 1,870,197 1,647,929 41,446,304
Deletions/Disposals ..... - 18,626,087 616,358 3,591,355 7,351,565 30,185,365
Revaluation ...................... - 718,806 412,708 - - 1,131,514

As at 30 June 2012 .... 28,287,908 201,016,782 42,774,808 8,717,644 7,959,929 288,757,071

Net Block

As at 30 June 2011 .... 37,085,635 39,507,693 4,933,122 4,033,497 344,403 85,904,351

As at 30 June 2012 .... 34,971,220 103,238,396 8,077,635 7,239,558 9,870,550 163,397,359

The gross and net carrying amount of assets acquired under finance lease and included in above is as follows:

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Gross Block Accumulated Net Block Gross Block Accumulated Net Block
depreciation/ depreciation/
Impairment Impairment

` ` ` ` ` `

Plant and machinery ... 59,404,341 56,711,464 2,692,877 59,404,341 48,122,107 11,282,234

59,404,341 56,711,464 2,692,877 59,404,341 48,122,107 11,282,234
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Developed Acquired Commercial
software software rights Total

` ` ` `

Gross Block
At 1 April 2010 ................................... 330,279,634 150,564,124 12,000,000 492,843,758
Purchase/Internal development . 41,231,754 29,145,251 - 70,377,005
Deletions/Disposals ......................... 164,501,256 8,733,869 - 173,235,125

As at 30 June 2011 ................... 207,010,132 170,975,506 12,000,000 389,985,638

Purchase/Internal development . 68,230,429 17,015,328 - 85,245,757
Deletions/Disposals ......................... - 103,090 12,000,000 12,103,090

As at 30 June 2012 ................... 275,240,561 187,887,744 - 463,128,305

Amortisation
At 1 April 2010 ................................... 159,964,849 127,858,946 12,000,000 299,823,795
Charge for the year .......................... 96,173,901 20,945,416 - 117,119,317
Deletions/Disposals ......................... 99,620,531 3,130,693 - 102,751,224

As at 30 June 2011 ................... 156,518,219 145,673,669 12,000,000 314,191,888

Charge for the year .......................... 23,298,026 15,952,069 - 39,250,095
Deletions/Disposals ......................... - 28,150 12,000,000 12,028,150

As at 30 June 2012 ................... 179,816,245 161,597,588 - 341,413,833

Net Block

As at 30 June 2011 ................... 50,491,913 25,301,837 - 75,793,750

As at 30 June 2012 ................... 95,424,316 26,290,156 - 121,714,472

13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Trade investment (unquoted at cost, unless otherwise stated)
Investments in Shares of Banks
Rupee Co-op. Bank Limited
5,000 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 5,000 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up) ....................... 50,000 50,000
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited
1,000 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,000 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up) ....................... 10,000 10,000

60,000 60,000

14 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Deferred tax assets:
Excess of depreciation/amortization on fixed assets under income tax law
over depreciation/amortization provided in accounts ........................................ 14,077,069 30,016,739
Provision for leave ................................................................................................................ 16,410,239 17,979,622
Provision for doubtful debts ............................................................................................ 23,581,314 10,200,019
Expenses deductible for tax in later years ................................................................ 13,425,610 1,593,199

67,494,232 59,789,579
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15 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Non current portion Current portion (refer note 19)
30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

` ` ` `
Unsecured , considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind ..................... 175,454 216,000 - -
Advance income-tax (net of provision for tax) .... 17,998,593 49,210,377 - 6,338,388
MAT credit entitlement .................................................. 525,892 27,116,102 4,231,138 5,644,768
Prepaid expenses .............................................................. 2,195,538 657,818 24,869,169 -
Deposits ................................................................................ 55,501,443 48,480,097 11,323,407 740,000

76,396,920 125,680,394 40,423,714 12,723,156

16 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Interest accrued on bank deposits ............................................................................... 110,660 147,123

110,660 147,123

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
` `

Unsecured
Receivables for a period exceeding six months from the
date they are due for payment
Considered good .................................................................................................................. 85,859,241 22,058,835
Considered doubtful ........................................................................................................... 84,558,744 13,536,827
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable ........................................................................ (84,558,744) (13,536,827)

85,859,241 22,058,835
Other receivables
Considered good .................................................................................................................. 231,837,524 316,228,485
Considered doubtful ........................................................................................................... 1,475,733 24,775,963
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable ........................................................................ (1,475,733) (24,775,963)

231,837,524 316,228,485

317,696,765 338,287,320
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` `

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Balances with banks
- On current accounts ......................................................................................................... 143,736,593 182,273,230
- On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) ............. 71,000,000 90,300,000
Other bank deposit accounts(with original maturity of 3 to 12 months) .. 175,200,000 132,600,000
Margin money deposits ..................................................................................................... 7,453,565 9,155,797
Unpaid dividend ................................................................................................................... 3,239,357 1,459,852

400,629,515 415,788,879

Margin money deposits

Margin money deposit represent deposit with banks given to various authorities amounting to ` 7,453,565 (2011:
` 8,958,874) which are due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date.

19 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured , considered good
Capital advance ..................................................................................................................... 44,854,681 -
Loans and advances ............................................................................................................ 1,447,629 -
Advances recoverable in cash or kind ......................................................................... 21,319,702 127,631,595
Prepaid expenses .................................................................................................................. 24,869,169 15,238,500
Deposits .................................................................................................................................... 11,323,407 740,000
Advance income-tax (net of provision for tax) ........................................................ 24,696,004 6,338,388
MAT credit entitlement ...................................................................................................... 4,231,138 5,644,768

132,741,730 155,593,251

Loans and advances to group companies include:
Due from group companies 1,447,629 -

20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Interest accrued on bank deposits ............................................................................... 4,710,534 4,034,935
Unbilled revenue .................................................................................................................. 258,757,841 168,784,875
Forward contract receivable ............................................................................................ 6,452,371 -

269,920,746 172,819,810
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21 OTHER INCOME

Interest on bank deposits 31,525,009 10,704,712
Interest on income tax refunds 5,941 2,870,159
Foreign exchange gain, net 48,989,637 6,430,414
Credit balances written back 21,734,438 11,525,365
Common amenities recharged - 2,946,003
Dividend 2,000 2,000
Profit on sale of asset, net 879,362 1,695,220
Miscellaneous income 19,082,149 20,448,144

122,218,536 56,622,017

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus 897,426,051 1,059,999,429
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 31,407,316 42,710,231
Staff welfare expenses 40,692,970 54,714,833

969,526,337 1,157,424,493

23 FINANCE COSTS

Finance charges 7,756,887 8,895,919
Other interest 156,743 1,047,165

7,913,630 9,943,084

24 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation of tangible assets ...................................................................................... 41,446,304 49,975,079
Amortisation of intangible assets ................................................................................. 39,250,095 117,119,319

80,696,399 167,094,398
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25 OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisement and sales promotion ........................................................................... 36,668,899 18,809,188
Auditors Remuneration (refer note below) ............................................................... 4,163,842 3,750,068
Bad debts written off .......................................................................................................... 9,755,346 7,249,830
Buyback expenses ................................................................................................................ 3,560,253 -
Commission and brokerage ............................................................................................. 53,982,785 61,769,707
Communication charges ................................................................................................... 22,970,434 29,941,160
Computer consumables ..................................................................................................... 680,262 1,631,670
Connectivity charges ........................................................................................................... 7,780,542 15,512,978
Contractor charges ............................................................................................................... 6,071,752 8,677,452
Data processing charges ................................................................................................... 20,311,554 27,350,963
Director’s Commission ........................................................................................................ 300,000 300,000
Director’s sitting and committee fees ......................................................................... 441,620 160,000
Donation ................................................................................................................................... 730,000 1,344,355
Insurance .................................................................................................................................. 3,305,678 4,936,007
Legal and professional ....................................................................................................... 12,430,420 14,647,205
Management Fees ................................................................................................................ 15,333,226 -
Mark to market loss on forward contract .................................................................. 29,349,208 -
Membership and subscription ........................................................................................ 7,240,695 25,903,080
Miscellaneous expenses .................................................................................................... 32,810,149 13,374,479
Power, fuel and water charges ........................................................................................ 28,646,995 35,050,718
Printing and stationery ...................................................................................................... 3,297,701 3,719,977
Provision for doubtful debts, net of bad debt written off ................................. 42,090,377 31,000,919
Provision for Doubtful deposit ....................................................................................... 300,000 -
Provision for expenses recoverable .............................................................................. 1,797,522 -
Rates and taxes ...................................................................................................................... 3,745,655 7,214,921
Recruitment expenses ........................................................................................................ 4,885,392 11,562,759
Rent (note 37) ........................................................................................................................ 98,151,031 122,555,615
Repair and maintenance :
- Machinery ....................................................................................................................... 2,142,847 3,388,702
- Others ............................................................................................................................... 22,671,006 28,326,787
Software and maintenance .............................................................................................. 71,791,266 23,119,290
Technical consultants charges ........................................................................................ 81,480,159 82,450,166
Travelling and conveyance ............................................................................................... 58,623,534 72,271,295

687,510,150 656,019,291

Auditors remuneration
Audit Fees ................................................................................................................................ 4,163,842 3,633,973
Other services (tax audit and certification) .............................................................. 100,000 60,000
Out of pocket expenses ..................................................................................................... 126,900 40,225

4,390,742 3,734,198
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26 PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COST CAPITALISED INCLUDE

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Payroll cost ............................................................................................................................... 17,722,396 25,892,913
Consultant fees ...................................................................................................................... 25,997,846 5,995,418
Other direct cost ................................................................................................................... 580,526 2,012,373
Other ancillary cost .............................................................................................................. 12,864 216,001

44,313,632 34,116,705

27 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

1 The Company has sold its entire shareholding in Synetairos Technologies Limited, a subsidiary of the Company on
1 July 2011 to Saksoft Limited as per the Share Purchase Agreement dated 1 July 2011, which has resulted into a gain
of ` 7,770,692.

2 During the period ended June’11 Kale Technologies Limited, UK, a subsidiary was wound up. The resultant gain of
` 10,509,605/- representing the surplus over investment made by the company has been recorded as a gain on
disposal of investments under the head “Exceptional Item”.

3 During the period ended June’11, the board of directors of the company, at its meeting held on 6 September 2010,
authorised a resolution approving the sale of the logistics business of the company to Kale Logistics Solution Private
Limited, as a going concern, on a slump sale basis, with effect from 1 October 2010. The loss on account of this sale
amounting to ` 44,654,807/- has been included in the profit and loss account under the head “Exceptional Item”.

28 PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSE

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Leave travel expense ........................................................................................................... - 6,035,194
Incentives ................................................................................................................................. - 38,404,292
Cenvat credit availed ........................................................................................................... - (5,525,204)
Excess Provision of Tax for prior years adjusted ..................................................... - (4,309,389)

- 34,604,893

29 EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Number of shares (face value ` 10 each) .................................................................. 14,926,261 15,880,087
Profit after tax ........................................................................................................................ 407,854,420 209,446,234
Weighted average number of shares considered for Basic EPS ...................... 15,605,914 15,292,864
Weighted average number of shares considered for diluted EPS .................. 15,605,914 15,292,864
Basic and Diluted EPS:
-Basic earnings per share .................................................................................................. 26.13 13.70
-Diluted earnings per share ............................................................................................. 26.13 13.70

30 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account to the extent not provided (net of advances) ....................................... 45,749,615 11,854,342

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Claims against the Company pertaining to Sales Tax with
Asst. Commissioner of Sales Tax, (Appeals) - For F.Y. 2001-02
(disallowance of Software services  and maintenance of software) .............. 7,870,739 7,870,739
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32 NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Year ended 15 month
Year of remittance (ending on) 30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Period to which the dividend relates .......................................................................... 2010-11 2009-10
Numbers of non-resident shareholders ...................................................................... 21 20
Numbers of equity shares held on which dividend was due ........................... 11,259,140 71,101
Amount remitted .................................................................................................................. 22,518,280 142,202
Period to which it relates .................................................................................................. 2011-12

(Interim dividend)
Numbers of non-resident shareholders ...................................................................... 21
Numbers of equity shares held on which dividend was due ........................... 11,272,423
Amount remitted .................................................................................................................. 152,177,713

33 EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP)

The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employee. During the year ended 30 June 2012, an employee
stock option plan (ESOP) was not in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant for the previous year are as
below:

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

Employee’s Stock Option Plan (ESOP)-2003
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ................................................................ - 498,489
Granted during the year .................................................................................................... - -
Forfeited (Lapsed) during the year ............................................................................... - 17,010
Exercised during the year ................................................................................................. - 481,479
Outstanding at the end of the year ............................................................................. - -
Employee’s Stock Option Plan (ESOP)-2006
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ................................................................ - 886,125
Granted during the year .................................................................................................... - -
Forfeited (Lapsed) during the year ............................................................................... - 27,061
Exercised during the year ................................................................................................. - 859,064
Outstanding at the end of the year ............................................................................. - -

34 RETIREMENT BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES

Gratuity

In accordance with Accounting Standards 15 (Revised) on Employee Benefits and applicable Indian laws, the Company
provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (Gratuity Plan). The Company provides the gratuity benefit through
annual contributions to a fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). LIC administers the plan and
determines the contribution required to be paid by the Company.
Changes in present value of obligations

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

a) Liability recognised in the balance sheet
i) Present value of obligation

Opening balance ............................................................................................... 35,558,569 24,138,979
Less: opening balance on sale of subsidiary ......................................... (1,125,254) -
Prior period expense ....................................................................................... - 184,595
Current service cost ......................................................................................... 6,275,813 8,448,226
Past service cost ................................................................................................. - 3,783,169
Interest cost ......................................................................................................... 2,711,602 2,328,791
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations .......................................................... (3,003,869) 2,930,846
Benefits paid ........................................................................................................ (3,526,817) (6,256,037)
Closing balance .................................................................................................. 36,890,044 35,558,569



CCCCCMMMMMYYYYY KKKKK

69 Ruby\Sales\Shyam Birde\Kale 17-9-12\Kale Consol Account 2012\AMD\17-9\Sagam\17-9

26th Annual Report 2011-12 Accelya Kale Solutions Limited 69

Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financials statement

34 RETIREMENT BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES (continued)

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

ii) Fair value of plan assets
Opening balance ............................................................................................... 30,109,791 23,212,181
Less: opening balance on sale of subsidiary ......................................... (774,857) -
Expected return on plan assets .................................................................. 2,715,579 3,101,239
Employer’s contributions ............................................................................... 3,572,180 11,238,167
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets ........................................................ (1,023,876) (1,185,759)
Benefits paid ........................................................................................................ (3,526,817) (6,256,037)
Closing balance .................................................................................................. 31,072,000 30,109,791

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet (i)-(ii) ............................................ (5,818,044) 5,448,778
b) Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current service cost ................................................................................................... 6,275,813 8,448,226
Past service cost .......................................................................................................... - 3,783,169
Interest Cost .................................................................................................................. 2,711,602 2,328,791
Expected return on plan assets ............................................................................ (2,715,579) (3,101,239)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised during the period ............................ (1,979,993) 4,116,605
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss ................................. 4,291,843 15,575,552

c) Break up of Plan assets
LIC of India - Insurer Managed Fund ................................................................. 100.00% 100.00%

d) Principal actuarial assumptions
Rate of discounting .................................................................................................... 8.30% 8.30%
Expected return on plan assets ............................................................................ 9.25% 9.25%
Rate of increase in basic salary ............................................................................. 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate .................................................................................................................. 15.00% 15.00%
Mortality .......................................................................................................................... LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)

ultimate ultimate
Normal retirement age ............................................................................................. 58 years 58 years

Experience adjustment Year ended For the 15 month Year ended
30 June 2012 period ended 31 March 2011

June 30, 2011

Present value of obligation ....................................................... 36,980,044 24,835,090 26,603,372
Plan assets ......................................................................................... 31,072,000 23,672,373 23,084,238
Surplus (deficit) ............................................................................... (5,818,044) (1,162,717) (3,519,134)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (loss)/gain .. 3,274,195 3,292,420 (1,196,040)
Experience adjustments on plan assets (loss)/gain ........ (1,023,876) (268,786) (543,820)

Leave encashment

In accordance with Accounting Standards 15 (Revised) on Employee Benefits, the Company provides for leave salary on the
basis of actuarial valuation.

Principal actuarial assumptions
Rate of discounting ............................................................................................................. 8.30% 8.30%
Rate of increase in cost to company ............................................................................ 12.00% 12.00%
Attrition rate ........................................................................................................................... 15.00% 15.00%
Mortality ................................................................................................................................... LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)

ultimate ultimate
Normal retirement age ....................................................................................................... 58 years 58 years
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35 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Company has one business segment which addresses the Travel and Transportation vertical. This, in context of
Accounting Standard 17 (AS17) on segment reporting, is considered to constitute one single segment.

Geographic segments

Continents Country

Asia Pacific India, China, New Zealand, Japan, Hong Kong, Singapore Indonesia, Australia,
Bangladesh, Fiji, Malaysia, Russia, South Korea,Sultanate of Brunei,Taiwan,Thailand
and Vietnam.

Middle East and Africa Mauritius, Zimbabwe, Kenya, Tanzania, Angola, Bahrain, Iran, Kuwait, Namibia,
Rwanda, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, UAE and Yemen.

Americas USA, Canada, Argentina Brazil, Chile, Colombia, El Salvador, Panama, and Mexico.

Europe Germany, France, Portugal, Italy, United Kingdom, Czech Republic, Denmark, Finland,
Greece, Luxembourg, Poland, Spain and Turkey.

Segment revenues

Revenues are attributable to individual geographic segments based on location of the end customer.

Capital Employed

Capital employed comprises debtors, unbilled revenue, income received in advance, expense recoverable from clients,
goodwill, fixed assets and other direct liabilities classified by reportable segments. The Company believes that it is currently
not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating to other assets and liabilities apart from above and hence, those
assets and liabilities have been included under unallocated.

Continent wise geographical revenue and capital employed

Continent Revenue Capital employed

Year ended 15 month Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended 30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2011

Asia Pacific ........................................................................ 542,967,830 802,444,737 401,726,628 356,714,407

Middle East and Africa ................................................ 597,063,366 657,652,449 100,765,730 98,773,558

Americas ............................................................................ 428,430,752 470,276,094 153,756,346 115,864,850

Europe ................................................................................ 605,258,698 280,529,272 524,516,578 419,018,334

Un-allocable assets ....................................................... - - 199,491,214 482,853,347

Total .................................................................. 2,173,720,645 2,210,902,552 1,380,256,495 1,473,224,496
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Related party disclosures

Related parties where control exists Name

Holding company Accelya Holding World SLU

Fellow Subsidiary Accelya World SLU
Accelya UK Limited

Key management personnel Philippe Lesueur - Chairman
Vipul Jain - Managing Director
Narendra Kale (from 1st July 2011 to 7th July 2011)
Prakash Alkutkar (Resigned on 1st July 2011)

Enterprises where key Management peronnel Interested Kale Logistics Solutions Private Limited

(B) Transactions with related parties `

Nature of transactions Year ended Holding Fellow Key Enterprises
Subsidiary management where key

personnel management
personnel are

interested

Issues of equity shares 30 June 2012 - -
30 June 2011 39,388,950 -

Services rendered by the Company 30 June 2012 7,102,927 - -
30 June 2011 - -

Services received by the Company 30 June 2012 37,182,480 - -
30 June 2011 - -

Claims raised for expenses 30 June 2012 8,267,121 - -
30 June 2011 - 3,628,710

Claims received for expenses 30 June 2012 18,715,448 2,929,804 - -
30 June 2011 - -

Remuneration 30 June 2012 21,093,227 -
30 June 2011 35,257,518 -

Transfer of business asset 30 June 2012 - -
30 June 2011 - 81,467,638

Amount paid on behalf of
Kale Logistics Solutions
Private Limited 30 June 2012 - -

30 June 2011 - 73,911,882

Balances outstanding

Payable 30 June 2012 1,515,971 11,952,676 2,516,148 -
30 June 2011 750,000 -

Receivable 30 June 2012 740,734 - -
30 June 2011 - 114,002,105
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Year ended 15 month
30 June 2012 period ended

30 June 2011
` `

(C) Of the above items, transactions in excess 10% of the total
related party transactions are as under

Nature of transaction
Income from Service rendered

Accelya world SLU ............................................................................................. 7,102,927 -
Purchase of services

Accelya world SLU ............................................................................................. 31,861,248 -
Accelya UK ............................................................................................................ 5,321,232 -

Expenses charged to group companies
Accelya Holding world SLU ........................................................................... 8,267,121 -

Expenses charged by group companies
Accelya Holding world SLU ........................................................................... 18,715,448 -

Salary/remuneration
Vipul Jain ............................................................................................................... 21,093,227 27,160,578
Narendra Kale ..................................................................................................... - 5,106,375
Prakash Alkutkar ................................................................................................ - 2,990,565

Payables
Accelya Holding world SLU ........................................................................... 1,515,970 -
Accelya UK Limited ........................................................................................... 5,321,232 -
Accelya world SLU ............................................................................................. 6,631,444
Vipul Jain ............................................................................................................... 2,516,148 750,000

Receivables
Accelya world SLU ............................................................................................. 740,734 -

37 LEASES

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease comprise of computer hardware. There are no exceptional/restrictive covenants in the
lease agreements.

The minimum lease payment outstanding and their present value at the balance sheet date that have been capitalized are
as follows :

Particulars Year ended 30 June 2012 For the 15 month period ended
30 June 2011

Minimum lease Present value of Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease payments payments lease payments

`̀̀̀̀ `̀̀̀̀ `̀̀̀̀ `̀̀̀̀

Not later than one year 3,899,280 3,516,548 9,059,332 7,968,997

Later than one year but not later
than five years 3,597,547 3,313,460

Particulars Year ended For the
30 June 2012 15 month

period ended
 30 June 2011

`̀̀̀̀ `

Minimum lease payments as above 3,899,680 12,656,879
Less: finance charges 383,133 1,374,422
Present Value of Lease Payments 3,516,547 11,282,457
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37 LEASES (continued)

Operating lease

The lease rental for office premises, guest house and godown charged to statement of profit and loss aggregates to
` 98,151,031 (previous year ` 122,555,615).

Future minimum lease commitments in respect of non cancellable operating leases:

Year ended For the
30 June 2012 15 month

period ended
 30 June 2011

`̀̀̀̀ `̀̀̀̀

Not later than one year 70,443,026 46,002,254

Later than one year and not later than five years 250,632,829 9,428,931

38 DISCLOSURE UNDER MICRO SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

The Company has no dues to micro and small enterprises during the periods ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 and
as at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011.

Particulars Year ended For the
30 June 2012 15 month

period ended
 30 June 2011

`̀̀̀̀ `̀̀̀̀

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the year end - -

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year - -

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED - -

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of the accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible - -

39 Unbilled revenue include revenue based on percentage of completion basis ` 131,959,202/- (previous year ` 73,375,933/-)

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W

Bhavesh Dhupelia Ninad Umranikar Vipul Jain Philippe Lesueur Gurudas Shenoy
Partner Company Secretary Managing Director Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
1 August 2012
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